
(/360

(/287

!"#$30

!"#$20

RRAANNDDOOLLMMIILLLL

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

SIL
O

SIL
O

NORWOODNORWOOD

KK EE
LL LL
YY
EE LL
LL II
OO TT
TT

BO
WE
N

BO
WE
N

MA
T L
OC
K

MA
T L
OC
K

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
LL
IN
S

CO
LL
IN
S

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

PE
RK
IN
S

PE
RK
IN
S

GG RR
EEEE
NN
OO AA
KK SS

EDENEDEN

MAINMAIN

MMAA
NNSS
FFIIEE
LLDDWW

EEBBBB

BARDINBARDIN

SOUT HEASTSOUT HEAST

HARRISHARRIS

ARBROOKARBROOK

SUBLET TSUBLET T

SANFORDSANFORD

PIONEER
PIONEER

SH
ER
RY

SH
ER
RY

BROWNBROWN

NN EE
WW
YY OO
RR KK

ARKANSASARKANSAS PIONEERPIONEER

ABRAMABRAM

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

MAYFIELDMAYFIELD

LAMARLAMAR

MIT CHELLMIT CHELL

(/360

(/287

!"#$30

!"#$20

RRAANNDDOOLLMMIILLLL

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

SIL
O

SIL
O

NORWOODNORWOOD

KK EE
LL LL
YY
EE LL
LL II
OO TT
TT

BO
WE
N

BO
WE
N

MA
T L
OC
K

MA
T L
OC
K

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

FIE
LD
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
OP
ER

CO
LL
IN
S

CO
LL
IN
S

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

PE
RK
IN
S

PE
RK
IN
S

GG RR
EEEE
NN
OO AA
KK SS

EDENEDEN

MAINMAIN

MMAA
NNSS
FFIIEE
LLDDWW

EEBBBB

BARDINBARDIN

SOUT HEASTSOUT HEAST

HARRISHARRIS

ARBROOKARBROOK

SUBLET TSUBLET T

SANFORDSANFORD

PIONEER
PIONEER

SH
ER
RY

SH
ER
RY

BROWNBROWN

NN EE
WW
YY OO
RR KK

ARKANSASARKANSAS PIONEERPIONEER

ABRAMABRAM

GGRREEEENNOOAAKKSS

MAYFIELDMAYFIELD

LAMARLAMAR

MIT CHELLMIT CHELL

0 1 2Miles

¿¿1

¿¿2

PLANNING & ZONINGPLANNING & ZONING
                           September 21, 2016                           September 21, 2016

¿¿3

¿¿4¿¿5 ¿¿6

¿¿7
¿¿8


T h is product is for inform ational purposes and m ay not h ave been 
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 

purposes. It does not
represent an on-th e-ground survey and represents only th e 
approxim ate relative location of property boundaries. 

1. Prelim inary Plat – Edgefield Addition
2. Prelim inary Plat – Park  20/360 Addition
3. ZA16-8 - Ballweg Residential
4. PD16-12 - T ak e 5 Oil Ch ange 
5. PD16-13 - T ak e 5 Oil Ch ange 
6. PD16-14 - T ak e 5 Oil Ch ange 
7. ASP16-2 - Hurricane Harbor Sign 
8. ASP16-3 - Six Flags Sign 



   
 
 
 

AGENDA 

NOTE:   City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  For other accommodations or sign 
interpretive services, please call the Business Services Division at 817-459-6652 
not later than 24 hours in advance. 

Planning and Zoning Commission  

Work Session 

     Council Briefing Room, 3rd floor 

                 101 West Abram Street  

 
 

September 21, 2016 
4:00 P.M. 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
II. DISCUSSION OF REGULAR SESSION AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
III. DIRECTOR UPDATE ON PREVIOUS COUNCIL ITEMS 

A. Zoning Case PD16-3 
(RaceTrac – 1211 West Harris Road) 
 

Application to change the zoning on approximately 4.166 
acres from Residential Estate (RE) and Light Industrial (LI) to 

Planned Development (PD) for limited Community 
Commercial (CC) uses plus a Package Liquor Store, with a 

Development Plan; generally located north of West Harris 
Road and east of South Cooper Street. 
 

CC Approved 9-0-0, with stipulations, on 09/06/16 on 
final reading 

 
B. Zoning Case SUP16-1 

(St. Andrew’s Methodist Church – 2045 Southeast Green Oaks 
Boulevard) 
 

Application for approval of a Specific Use Permit for a day 
care center on approximately 6.053 acres zoned Residential 
Single-Family 7.2 (RS-7.2) and Residential Single-Family 5 
(RS-5); generally located north of Southeast Green Oaks 
Boulevard and east of New York Avenue. 
 

CC Approved 9-0-0 on 09/06/16 on final reading 

 



Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda 9-21-16 Page 2 

IV. DISCUSSION OF FUTURE MEETING DATES AND TIMES 
 

(a) Planning and Zoning Commission Two-Hour Bus Tour –  
September 30, 2016 
 

(b) Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting on October 5, 2016 
 
 
V. ADJOURN 



 
 
 
 
AGENDA 
 

NOTE:   City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  For other accommodations or sign 
interpretive services, please call the Business Services Division at 817-459-6652 
not later than 24 hours in advance. 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission  
Regular Session 

   Council Briefing Room, 3rd floor 

101 West Abram Street  

 
 

September 21, 2016 
5:30 P.M. 

 
 
Meeting order is subject to change per the Commission’s Discretion 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

II. PLEDGE 
 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
A. Minutes of September 7, 2016 P&Z Meeting 

 

 
IV. PLAT CONSENT AGENDA AND PUBLIC HEARING FOR PLATS 

 
A. Preliminary Plat – Edgefield Addition, Lots 1 through 13, Lot 14X, 

Block 1; Lots 1 through 12, Block 2; Lots 1X, 2 through 32, Lot 
33X and 34X, Block 3; (Zoned “PD”); generally located north of 

Debbie Lane and south of South Collins Street with the 
approximate address being 901 Debbie Lane.   

B. Preliminary Plat – Park 20/360 Addition, Lots 1 through 9, Block 
1; (Zoned “IM”); generally located south of East Arbrook 

Boulevard and west of South Watson Road with the approximate 
address being 2500 East Arbrook Boulevard. 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 



Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda 9-21-16 Page 2 

 

V. PUBLIC HEARING FOR ZONING CASES 

A. Zoning Case ZA16-8 

(Ballweg Residential - 7415, 7418, and 7500 Webb Ferrell Road) 
 

Application to change the zoning on approximately 43.634 acres 

from Residential Estate (RE) to Residential Single Family – 7.2 
(RS-7.2); generally located west of South Collins Street and 

south of Mansfield Webb Road. 
 

B. Zoning Case PD16-12 
(Take 5 Oil Change – 2417 West Pleasant Ridge Road) 

 
Application to change the zoning on approximately 0.531 acres 

from Community Commercial (CC) to Planned Development (PD) 
for General Commercial (GC) uses limited to an Auto Service 

Center, with a Development Plan; generally located north of 
West Pleasant Ridge Road and east of South Bowen Road 

C. Zoning Case PD16-13 
(Take 5 Oil Change – 5801 Office Park Drive) 

 
Application to change the zoning on approximately 0.49 acres 

from Community Commercial (CC) to Planned Development (PD) 
for General Commercial (GC) uses limited to an Auto Service 

Center, with a Development Plan; generally located north of 
West Interstate Highway 20 and west of West Green Oaks 

Boulevard. 

D. Zoning Case PD16-14 

(Take 5 Oil Change – 4500 Matlock Road) 

Application to change the zoning on approximately 0.819 acres 
from Planned Development (PD) for a Convenience Store with 

Gasoline Sales to Planned Development (PD) for General 
Commercial (GC) uses limited to an Auto Service Center, with a 

Development Plan; generally located south of East Stephens 
Street and west of Matlock Road. 

E. Zoning Case ASP16-2 
(Hurricane Harbor Sign – 1800 East Lamar Boulevard) 

Application to approve an Alternate Sign Plan on approximately 

46 acres zoned Entertainment District Overlay – Community 
Commercial (EDO-CC); generally located north of East Interstate 

30 Highway and west of Ballpark Way. 



Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda 9-21-16 Page 3 

 

F. Zoning Case ASP16-3 

(Six Flags Sign – 2201 East Road to Six Flags) 

Application to approve an Alternate Sign Plan on approximately 
190 acres zoned Entertainment District Overlay – Community 

Commercial (EDO-CC); generally located south of East Interstate 
30 Highway and east of Ballpark Way. 

 
 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

A. Reports from Boards/Commissions Liaisons 
 

B. Reports from Staff and Announcements 
 

C. Discussion of Future Meeting Dates and Times  
 

 
VII. ADJOURN 



 
 
 
 
AGENDA 
 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission  
 

Monthly Bus Tour  
  

 

September 30, 2016 
8:00 A.M. 

 
 

8:00 a.m. Planning and Zoning Commission Two-Hour Bus Tour of 

various metroplex developments. 
 

A quorum of the Commission may be present.  No formal action 

will be taken. 

 



Staff Report 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Consider a revised preliminary plat on the consent agenda. 

 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 

On June 1, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of Zoning 

Case PD16-7 requesting Planned Development (PD) for Residential Single-Family 7.2  

(RS-7.2) uses, with a Development Plan by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 

On August 2, 2016, City Council approved Planned Development PD16-7 by a vote of 8-0-0.  

 

ANALYSIS 

The applicant, Neel-Schaffer, Inc, represented by Derek Cheatham, proposes to plat 56 

residential lots and four open space (“X”) lots in a 12.17 acre portion of Block 2, Block 25 of 

the Harris Crossing Addition.   

The plat is in substantial conformance with the approved zoning PD16-7 for this site.  

Amenity and open space lots will be held in common ownership and will be maintained by a 

Home Owners Association.  The perimeter fencing and landscaping along Debbie Lane and 

South Collins Street are included in these lots.  The amenity lot is also included in common 

ownership.  

Other than discretionary matters for the Commission, the application is administratively 

complete and meets the requirements of the subdivision regulations of the Unified 

Development Code. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

None 

 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

 
Property Location: Generally located north of Debbie Lane and south of 

South Collins Street with the approximate address being 

901 Debbie Lane.   

Sector: Southeast 

 
Council District: 3 

 

 

Current Zoning: Planned Development (PD) for Residential Single-Family 

7.2 (RS-7.2) uses, with a Development Plan.  

 
ATTACHED i. Location Map 
 ii. 11X17 Plat 

 

 

 

 

Preliminary Plat (Edgefield) 

Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  9-21-16 Document Being Considered:  Plat 



Page 2 of 2 
 
STAFF CONTACT(S) 

Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Shon Brooks, AICP 

Development Planning Manager Principal Planner 

Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 

817-459-6138 817-459-6514 

Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov  

 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov


SUP13-2

RE

CC

CC

CC

PD

PD-CA

PD-CA

PD-CA

PD-CA

PD-CA

PD-CA

PD-CA

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

MOSSBERG DR

YORK BEACH PLC
SAN JO SE ST

JAGERA WAY

DEBBIE LN

LOST CANYON
TRL

MOSS GLEN TRL
COTTON VALLEY LN

STOWE SPRINGS LN

MAZATLAN CT
CASA GRANDES DR

EAGLE POINT TRL

WILD PRAIRIE DR
S CO

LLINS ST

08404

08225

08226

08422

08108

08429
08427

08002

08008

08414

00805

08126

08305
08307

00637

00639

08407

08125

08119

08110
08114

01000

08014

08015

08105

08219
01002

00703

00616
08411

08218

08423

08419

08010

08003

08021

00600

00619

08400

08424

08007

08011

08019

08022

08410

00800

08122

08117

08111

08418
00627

08104

08103

08425

08012

08017

08223

08121

00621

08018

08417

08004
08006

00902

00903

08106

00804

08415

08107

00900

00702

08009

08303

00815

08112

00625

08120

08115

00806

08309

08416

08101

00514

08023

00631
00633

08401

08123

08116

08406

00701
08016

08001

00901

08100

08403

08131

08230

08201

08402

00635

08227

00638
08405

00603

00623

00905

08409

08421

00622

00605

08005

08124

08228

00629

00907

08311

08102

08109

08420

08408

00620

08118

00601

08301

08232

00928
00930

08317

00721

08050

08306

08300

00948

00949
08315

08308

00719

08304

08310

00722

00906 08302
00932

08319

00934

08312

00931

08321

07800

01121

00727
00725

00937

08221

00726

00723

00808 07900

00938

00944

00803

00809

00939
00941

00929

00802

00811

00911

00943

08220

00731
00729

00709 00940

00935

08222

00717
00715

00945

00724

00801

00807

00936

08200

00700

08224
00733

00711

08000

08020

00810

00933

00942

/
LOCATION MAP

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 9-9-2016

EDGEFIELD ADDITION
PRELIMINARY PLAT

SB

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of  property boundaries. 
0 300150

Feet





 

Staff Report 
 

Preliminary Plat (Park 20/360 Addition) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  9-21-16 Document Being Considered:  Plat 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Consider a Preliminary Plat on the consent agenda. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
None 
 
ANALYSIS 
The subject property is zoned Industrial Manufacturing (IM) and is currently developed with an 
institutional use.  
 
The applicant, Pacheco Koch, represented by Clayton Strolle, proposes a preliminary plat for 
12 acres of the Arlington Tech Centre Addition, 107 acres of the Arbrook Addition, creating 
nine lots in approximately 119 acres, out of the William Hayman Survey. This Preliminary Plat 
is being processed in order to redevelop the site as a major warehouse development.  This site 
currently has a commercial site plan application under review by staff.    
 
Other than discretionary matters for the Commission, the application is administratively 
complete and meets the requirements of the subdivision regulations. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

Property Location: Generally located north of Interstate 20 Highway West 
and west of South Watson Road with the approximate 
address of 2500 East Arbrook Boulevard 

 
 Sector:   East 

 
 Council District:  5 

 
Current Zoning: Industrial Manufacturing (IM)     
 

ATTACHED  i. Location Map 
 ii. 11 x 17 Plat 

 
 
 
STAFF CONTACT(S) 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Kevin Charles 
Development Planning Manager Senior Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6515 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov  

 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov


SUP08-11

PD

RS-7.2

IM

IM

IM
IM

IM

RS-5

RS-7.2
RS-7.2
RS-7.2

RS-7.2

PD

RS-7.2RS-7.2
RS-7.2RS-7.2
RS-7.2RS-7.2
RS-7.2RS-7.2

RS-7.2
RMF-22

P02-37

E ARBROOK BLV

E INTERSTATE 20 HWY

SS
H3

60
SB

45
3E

B
RM

P

E INTERSTATE 20 FWY

SHARPSHIRE LN

PENNINGTON DR

KNOLL CREST DR

S W
AT

SO
N

RD

S SH360 NB 453 WB RMP

E I20 EB 453 NB RMP

SCIENTIFIC DR

SH
ER

RY
 S

T

DESIGN RD

03507

03605

03509

03505
03503

03603

02330 02420
02440

04400

03623

03609

03607

02232

03619

02000

03621

02375

03618

03625

02201

02248

03615

03600
02208

03611

02331

03608

02340

03627

02200

03617

03601

02225

02310

02083

02350

03901

02400

02101

02151

02100

02001

03450

03996

0230002251

03500

04000

/
LOCATION MAP

_̂

i - 1Prepared: 9-11-2016

PARK 20/360 ADDITION
PRELIMINARY PLAT

KC

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of  property boundaries. 
0 580290

Feet







 

Staff Report 
 

 

Zoning Case ZA16-8 (Ballweg Residential) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date: 9-21-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Following the public hearing, consider Zoning Case ZA16-8. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
None 
 
ANALYSIS 
Request 
The applicant requests to change the zoning on approximately 43.634 acres addressed at 
7415, 7418, and 7500 Webb Ferrell Road, and generally located west of South Collins Street 
and south of Mansfield Webb Road. 
 
Current zoning:  Residential Estate (RE) 
Requested zoning:  Residential Single Family – 7.2 (RS-7.2) 
 
The subject site is currently developed with an existing residence and related agricultural 
outbuildings.   
 
Adjacent Land Uses 
Properties to the east and south are zoned RS-7.2 and developed with single family 
residences. The property to the west across Loretta Day Drive is developed with James 
Coble Middle School.  The property to the north is zoned RE and includes the Bowman 
Branch Linear-Mansfield Webb-Webb Ferrell Park with Webb Community Park extending to 
the north.  These parks include future plans for installing additional off-street trails.   
 
Comprehensive Plan Analysis 
The proposed new zoning designation is Residential Single-Family-7.2 (RS-7.2). The 
Comprehensive Plan contains goals to develop residential neighborhoods with a variety of 
housing styles, to encourage the provision of affordable quality housing to attract new 
middle and upper income families to Arlington, as well as providing high quality housing 
options for Arlington’s current residents. This area is primarily residential, and the requested 
zoning change would maintain the general character of the surrounding area.  While 
maintaining the character, this development does not provide variety in housing styles as 
stated as a goal of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Attached: i. Case Information 
 ii. Itemized Allowable Uses 
 iii. Location Map 
 iv. Photos 
  
Under separate cover: None 
Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 
CITY COUNCIL DATE October 11, 2016 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Shon Brooks, AICP 
Development Planning Manager Principal Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6514 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov  

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Shon.Brooks@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
  

Zoning Case: ZA16-8  i-1 

Prepared:   8-6-16     SHON BROOKS 

Applicant: Mycoskie, McInnis and Associates represented by Douglas 

Cooper  

 

Property Owner:  Jim Ballweg 

 

Sector Plan:  Southeast 

 

Council District:  3 

 
Allowable Uses: All uses as itemized in attachment ii. 
 

Development History: The subject site is currently unplatted and commonly known as 

Abstract Number 482 of the Silas Estes Survey, Abstract 

Number 1592 of the W H Vant Survey, and Abstract Number 

516 of the S Ferrell Survey. 

 

 Previous zoning cases in the general vicinity in the past five 

years include: 

 

Case No. Location Request Disposition 

PD16-7 

Edgefield 

Southwest PD for CC to 

PD for RS-7.2 

Approved 

 

 

Transportation: The proposed development has three points of access. 

 

Thoroughfare Existing Proposed 

 

Webb Ferrell Road 

60-foot, 2-lane 

undivided  

minor collector 

60-foot, 2-lane 

undivided  

minor collector 

 

Ballweg Drive 

70-foot, 2-lane 

undivided  

major collector 

70-foot, 4-lane 

undivided  

minor collector 

 

Loretta Day Drive 

58-foot, 2-lane 

undivided  

major collector 

70-foot, 4-lane 

undivided  

major collector 

 

Traffic Impact: The proposal will require a Thoroughfare Development Plan 

amendment.  A change in zoning will increase the average daily 

trips by 251, with an addition of 20 trips during the a.m. peak 

hour and 27 trips during the p.m. peak hour. Improvements to 

handle the increased traffic to the adjacent street system will 

be reviewed with the Preliminary Plant and Public Improvement 

Plans. 

  

Water & Sewer:  Water is available from a 12-inch water line in Webb Ferrell 

Road, from a 16" water line in Ballweg Road, from a 6" water 



Case Information  
   

 

Zoning Case: ZA16-8  i-2 

Prepared:   8-6-16     SHON BROOKS 

line in Waterfowl Trail, from an 8" water line in Longbow Lane, 

and from a 12" water line in Loretta Day Drive. 

 

Drainage: The site is located within both the Bowman Branch and Walnut 

Creek drainage basins. No portion of the site is located in a 

floodplain. 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 16, located at 1503 Mansfield Webb Road, 

provides protection to this site.  The estimated fire response 

time is less than five minutes, which is in keeping with 

recommended standards. 

 

School District: Mansfield Independent School District. 

 

 The proposed zoning request is located in the Mansfield 

Independent School District and has no impact on the schools 

serving this site.   

  

Notices Sent: 

  Neighborhood  

  Associations: ACTION North Arlington 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Association 

Forest Hills Home Owners Association 

Mansfield Independent School District 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

West Citizen Action Network (WeCan) 

Berkeley Square Crime Watch 

Deer Creek Neighborhood Watch 

Fossil Lake III Home Owners Association 

Harris Crossing Home Owners Association 

Lake Port Meadows Home Owners Association 

Lake Port Village Community Association, Inc. 

Meadow Vista Community Watch Organization 

Nature's Glen 

The Crossing at Ruidosa Ridge Neighborhood 

Property Owners: 72 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 



Itemized Allowable Uses 
 

 

Zoning Case:  ZA16-8   ii-1 

Prepared:   8-6-16     SHON BROOKS 

Allowable Uses: RESIDENTIAL SINGLE-FAMILIY 7.2 (SF-7.2) 

Permitted - Dwelling, single-family detached on minimum 7,200 

Square Feet, Non-Residential on minimum 15,000 square foot lots, 

Assisted living facility (≤6 residents), Community home for disabled 

persons, Foster family home, Foster group homes, Government 

administration and civic buildings, Religious assembly, Public or private 

school, Community garden, Public park or playground, Golf course, 

Utility lines, towers or metering station, garage (private), and 

accessory swimming pool (private). 

 

Specific Use Permit (SUP) - Assisted living facility (≥7 residents), 

Philanthropic institution (other than listed), Bed and breakfast inn, Day 

care center, Country club, Marina, Airport or landing field, Gas well, 

Telecommunication Facilities Towers ≤75 ft., Stealth towers ≤100 ft., 

Telecommunication Facilities Towers >75 ft., Stealth towers >100 ft., 

Community center (private), and Secondary living unit. 

 

Conditions (C) – Telecommunication Facilities Building-mounted 

antennae and towers, Accessory building, Alternative energy system, 

Carport, and Home-based business. 

 

 



SUP08-6

SUP06-3

RS-7.2

RE

RE

OC

LI

RS-7.2
RS-7.2

RS-7.2 RS-7.2

RS-7.2RS-7.2

CC
RS-7.2

RS-7.2

RE

RS-7.2 RS-7.2

RS-7.2

RS-7.2

RS-7.2

PD PD

RS-7.2

RS-7.2

PD04-28R1

WEBB FERRELL RD

BALLWEG RD

LONGBOW
LN

WATER FOWL TRL

HANRAHAN AVE

LABRADOR DR

DUNDEE DRCLOYNE DR

LORETTA DAY DR

0811508114

08103

01025

08112

01023

01029
08125

01027

07154

07104

08107
08110

07108

07101

07111

0710507102

07107

08104

08108

07100

07722

01317

07729

07109
07106

06806

07719

07818
01215

07816 07815

01214

07807
07806

01200 07727

07811
07809

07808

07725

07801

08102 01210

08201

07901

07717
07715

07701

01321

07805

07723

08105

01219

07726

07817

01319

07803

07103

08109

07115

08111

07721
07716

07714

07814
07810

07804

07819

07802

07828

07820

07826

07822

07700

07718

07708
07706

07703

07420

07705

07617
07612

07710

01510

07704

07608

07110

07614

07522
07521

07516

07526

07605

07527

01400

07520

01015
07601

07519
07517

07606 07607

07524
07523

07514

06801

01008

07824

07702

07610

07603

07404

07604

07515

07525

07724

07500

07414

07728

07611
07609

01423

07800

08101

07602

01010

01100

01437

07615

07501
01511

07300

07509
07507

01012

01501

07600

07508

07444

0751107510

07720

01432

07505
07503

01013

00808

07408

/

LOCATION MAP
ZA16-8

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 7-18-2016

RE TO RS-7.2
43.634 ACRES

SB

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 420210

Feet



  iv-1 
 

ZA16-8 

West of South Collins Street and south of Mansfield Webb Road 
 

  

View of subject site from Webb Ferrell Road. 

View south. 

View of adjacent properties to the east. 

  

View of adjacent School property across 

Loretta Day Drive.  View west. 

View of notification sign along Webb Ferrell 

Road.  View east. 

  

 



 

Staff Report 
 

Zoning Case PD16-12 (Take 5 oil change - 2417 Pleasant Ridge 
Road) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  9-21-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Following the public hearing, consider Zoning Case PD16-12, with a Development Plan. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
None 
 
ANALYSIS  
Request  
The applicant requests to change the zoning on approximately 0.531 acres addressed at 
2417 Pleasant Ridge Road, and generally located north of West Pleasant Ridge Road and 
east of South Bowen Road. 
 
Current zoning:  Community Commercial (CC) 
Requested zoning:  Planned Development (PD) for General Commercial (GC) uses limited 

to an Auto Service Center, with a Development Plan 
 
Existing Site Conditions 
The subject site was developed but unoccupied with a gas station and convenience store.  
The canopy and tanks have been removed from the site though the structure remains and is 
unoccupied.  The site is currently zoned Community Commercial (CC).  This application is to 
rezone the entire site to Planned Development for General Commercial (GC) to allow an auto 
service center use, which is not allowed in CC zoning. 
 
Development Plan 
The development plan proposes the demolition of the existing structure and redevelopment 
of the entire site. The proposal includes a 1,636-square-foot, three-bay service area 
specifically designed for minor repair of motor vehicles within enclosed service bays or 
stalls.  These services may include but are not limited to services such as retail sale and 
dispensing of lubricating oils, tires, filters, and other limited repair and maintenance work.  
 
The structure shall consist of two main exterior materials, brick veneer and EIFS.  A tower 
element has been added to the corner of the structure incorporating a standing seam metal 
roof with a 12:10 slope. 
 
The building is designed such that the customer is required to remain in the vehicle while 
their vehicle is being serviced and, therefore there is no waiting area incorporated into the 
design.  The corporate concept is focused on convenience for the customer. 
 
Landscaping and Screening 
The applicant is proposing a landscape plan that complies with the requirements of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC).  Per the UDC, Section 3.2.3.B.1 Auto Service Center, 
service bays shall not face a public street.  With this PD, the applicant is proposing a 
deviation to this standard.  The applicant is proposing the installation of a six-foot tall 
masonry wall along the Pleasant Ridge street frontage in order to screen the bay doors from 
the public right-of way.     
 



Page 2 of 3 

 

The following is a comparison of the current UDC standards to the applicant’s proposed 
landscape: 
 

 
The proposed, eight-foot tall dumpster enclosure will be wrapped with brick veneer to 
provide compatibility with the primary structure.  The applicant is also providing the 
required, four-foot tall evergreen living screen.   
 
Parking 
Based on the proposed use, two parking spaces are required (2 per 1000 gfa).  The 
applicant is providing nine parking spaces. Each over-parked space requires three additional 
trees per the UDC.  The applicant has complied with this requirement by installing three 4-
inch caliper trees.  Along with required vehicle parking, one bicycle rack is required.   
 
Adjacent Land Uses 
The property to the north of the subject site is zoned Community Commercial (CC) and is 
developed with a restaurant use.  The property to the east has split zoning, Community 
Commercial (CC) and Neighborhood Commercial (NC), and is developed as a financial 
institution.  The property to the south is zoned Community Commercial (CC) and is 
developed with a commercial use that includes gasoline sales. The property to the west is 
developed with a commercial use that includes gasoline sales, and is also located outside of 
Arlington city limits.   
 
Comprehensive Plan Analysis 
The proposed zoning change from CC to PD for auto service center represents a move away 
from the low-intensity neighborhood commercial uses that are envisioned for established 
residential areas in the Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan contains goals to 
develop high-quality residential neighborhoods along with commercial development that 
provides convenient neighborhood services to local residents. While immediately adjacent 
uses are zoned CC, the surrounding areas are primarily residential and a park and trail are 
located close to the site.  
 
Although the Comprehensive Plan calls for neighborhood and community convenience uses 
at this location, the addition of the proposed auto service center contributes to the 

 Required per UDC Proposed 

Landscape Setback 

Setback Width 15 feet 15 feet 

Trees in Setback Eight 3” caliper trees Eight 4” caliper trees 

Plants in Setback 72 plants 15 ornamental grasses 
104 shrubs 

150 groundcover plants 
All focused on the Pleasant 

Ridge street frontage  

Parking Lot Islands 

Trees in Islands One 3” caliper tree per island Four 4” caliper tree per island 

Additional Landscaping 

Additional landscaping has been installed around the structure and in the island adjacent 
to the stacking area and around all the internal parking areas.  The applicant is including 
a combination of boulders, Colorado River Rock, shrubs, ornamental grasses, and 
seasonal color to accent the project. 



Page 3 of 3 

 

oversaturation of this use in this area.  The zoning request is not reasonable considering the 
existing development patterns within the general vicinity.   
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Attached: i. Case Information 
 ii. Itemized Allowable Uses 
 iii. Location Map 
 iv. Photos  
 v.  Development Plan (3 pages) 
Under separate cover: None 
Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE October 11, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Kevin Charles 
Development Planning Manager Senior Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6515 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov 
 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
   

Zoning Case: PD16-12  i-1 

Prepared:   9-16-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

Applicant: Richmond Group, represented by James M. Corkill, FAHA/AIA 

 

Property Owner:  Pleasant Ridge Road Property, LLC represented by Chan Lee 

 

Sector Plan:  West 

 

Council District:  4 

 
Allowable Uses: Auto service center 
 

Development History: The subject site is currently platted and is commonly known as 

Lot 6A, Block 2 of the Pleasant Ridge Acres Addition.   

 

 No previous zoning cases have occurred in the general vicinity 

within the past five years. 

 

Transportation: The proposed development has two points of access one from 

Pleasant Ridge and one from South Bowen Road.  

 

Thoroughfare Existing Proposed 

South Bowen Road 120-foot, 6-lane 

divided arterial 

120-foot, 6-lane 

divided arterial 

Pleasant Ridge 120-foot, 6-lane 

divided arterial 

120-foot, 6-lane 

divided arterial 

 

Traffic Impact: The proposed zoning change will increase the average daily 

trips by 396, with an addition of 30 trips during the a.m. peak 

hour and 37 trips during the p.m. peak hour.  The additional 

trips will not significantly impact the adjacent roadway systems. 

 

Water & Sewer:  The site is currently served with water and sewer. 

 

Drainage: The site is located in the Rush Creek drainage basin. The site 

has no portion within the FEMA floodplain.  No significant 

drainage impacts are expected to result from development of 

this site as long as all relevant city ordinances are complied 

with. 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 9, located at 909 Wimbledon Drive, 

provides protection to this site.  The estimated fire response 

time is less than five minutes, which is in keeping with 

recommended standards. 

 

School District: Arlington Independent School District 

 

 The proposed request is located in the Arlington Independent 

School District and has no impact on the schools serving this 

site.   

Notices Sent: 



Case Information  
   

 

Zoning Case: PD16-12  i-2 

Prepared:   9-16-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

  Neighborhood  

  Associations: ACTION North Arlington 

Arlington Independent School District 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Assn 

Forest Hills Home Owner’s Association 

Fort Worth Independent School District 

HEB Independent School District  

Kennedale Independent School District  

Mansfield Independent School District 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

West Citizen Action Network (WeCan) 

Wimbledon Addition Home Owner’s Association 

Southwest Arlington Property Owners (SWAPO) 

 

  Property Owners: 6 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 



 

Itemized Allowable Uses 
   

Zoning Case:  PD16-12   ii-1 

Prepared:   9-16-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

 

Allowable Uses: Planned Development (PD) for General Commercial (GC) 

uses limited to Auto service center 

 

Permitted – Auto service center 



SUP03-12

RS-7.2

RS-7.2

CC
PD

CC

OC

NC

B95-83

W PLEASANT RIDGE RD

S B
OW

EN
 R

D

04206

04200

04202

04204

02326

04255

02319

02323

04105

04208

04111

04201

02425

02327

02423

02417

04216

/

LOCATION MAP
PD16-12

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 12-14-2015

PD FOR GC USES LIMITED TO AN 
AUTO SERVICE CENTER WITH
DEVELOPMENT PLAN

KC

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 10050

Feet



  iv-1 
 

PD16-12 

North of West Pleasant Ridge Road and east of South Bowen Road  

  

View of subject site.  View northeast. View of adjacent commercial use located north 

of the subject site.  View north. 

  

View of adjacent commercial use located north 

of the subject site.  View south. 

View of adjacent commercial use located east 

of the subject site.  View east. 

  

 





 

Staff Report 
 

Zoning Case PD16-13 (Take 5 oil change - 5801 Office Park Drive) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  9-21-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Following the public hearing, consider Zoning Case PD16-13, with a Development Plan. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
None 
 
ANALYSIS  
Request  
The applicant requests to change the zoning on approximately 0.49 acres addressed at 5801 
Office Park Drive, and generally located north of West Interstate Highway 20 and west of 
West Green Oaks Boulevard. 
 
Current zoning:  Community Commercial (CC) 
Requested zoning:  Planned Development (PD) for General Commercial (GC) uses limited 

to an Auto Service Center, with a Development Plan 
 
Existing Site Conditions 
The subject site was developed with a restaurant, but is currently unoccupied.  The site is 
currently zoned Community Commercial (CC).  This application is to rezone the entire site to 
Planned Development for General Commercial (GC) to allow an auto service center use, 
which is not allowed in CC zoning. 
 
Development Plan 
The development plan proposes the demolition of the existing structure and redevelopment 
of the entire site. The proposal includes a 1,629.04-square-foot, three-bay service area 
specifically designed for minor repair of motor vehicles within enclosed service bays or 
stalls.  These services may include but are not limited to services such as retail sale and 
dispensing of lubricating oils, tires, filters, and other limited repair and maintenance work.  
 
The structure shall consist of two main exterior materials, brick veneer and EIFS.  A tower 
element has been added to the corner of the structure incorporating a standing seam metal 
roof with a 12:10 slope. 
 
The building is designed such that the customer is required to remain in the vehicle while 
their vehicle is being serviced and, therefore there is no waiting area incorporated into the 
design.  The corporate concept is focused on convenience for the customer. 
 
Landscaping and Screening 
The applicant is proposing a landscape plan that complies with the requirements of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC).  Per the UDC, section 3.2.3.B.1 Auto Service Center, 
service bays shall not face a public street.  With this PD, the applicant is proposing a 
deviation to this standard.  The applicant is proposing the installation of a six-foot tall 
masonry wall along the Matlock Road street frontage in order to screen the bay doors from 
the public right-of way.     
 
 



Page 2 of 3 

 

The following is a comparison of the current UDC standards to the applicant’s proposed 
landscape: 
 

 
The proposed, eight-foot tall dumpster enclosure will be wrapped with brick veneer to 
provide compatibility with the primary structure.  The applicant is also providing the 
required four-foot tall evergreen living screen.   
 
Parking 
Based on the proposed use, two parking spaces are required (2 per 1000 gfa).  The 
applicant is providing eight parking spaces. Each over-parked space requires three 
additional trees per the UDC.  The applicant has complied with this requirement by installing 
three 4-inch caliper trees.  Along with required vehicle parking, one bicycle rack is required.   
 
Adjacent Land Uses 
The properties to the north, south, and west of the subject site are zoned Community 
Commercial (CC) and are developed with a restaurant use to the west, a strip shopping 
center to the north, and across Office Park Drive to the south.  The property to the east 
across Little Road is zoned as a PD for an Auto Service Center (Firestone).   
 
Comprehensive Plan Analysis 
The proposed zoning change from CC to PD for auto service center represents a move away 
from the low-intensity neighborhood commercial uses that are envisioned for established 
residential areas in the Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan contains goals to 
develop high-quality residential neighborhoods along with commercial development that 
provides convenient neighborhood services to local residents. While immediately adjacent 
uses are zoned CC, the surrounding areas are primarily residential and a park and trail are 
located close to the site.  
 
Although the Comprehensive Plan calls for neighborhood and community convenience uses 
at this location, the addition of the proposed auto service center contributes to the 
oversaturation of this use in this area.  The zoning request is not reasonable considering the 
existing development patterns within the general vicinity.   
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 Required per UDC Proposed 

Landscape Setback 

Setback Width 15 feet 15 feet 

Trees in Setback Eight 3” caliper trees  Eight 4” caliper trees 

Plants in Setback  84 plants 73 ornamental grasses 
64 shrubs 

10 seasonal color plants 

Parking Lot Islands 

Trees in Islands One 3” caliper tree per island Four 4” caliper tree per island 

Additional Landscaping 

Additional landscaping has been installed around the structure and in the island adjacent 
to the stacking area and around all the internal parking areas.  The applicant is including 
a combination of decomposed granite, shrubs, ornamental grasses, and seasonal color to 
accent the project. 



Page 3 of 3 

 

None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Attached: i. Case Information 
 ii. Itemized Allowable Uses 
 iii. Location Map 
 iv. Photos  
 v.  Development Plan (3 pages) 
Under separate cover: None 
Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE October 11, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Kevin Charles 
Development Planning Manager Senior Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6515 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov 
 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
   

Zoning Case: PD16-13  i-1 

Prepared:   9-16-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

Applicant: Richmond Group, represented by James M. Corkill, FAHA/AIA 

 

Property Owner:  Milner Ltd. Partnership represented by John Milner 

 

Sector Plan:  West 

 

Council District:  4 

 
Allowable Uses: Auto service center 
 

Development History: The subject site is currently platted and is commonly known as 

Lot 23B of the A.C. Richey Addition.   

 

 No previous zoning cases have occurred in the general vicinity 

within the past five years. 

 

Transportation: The proposed development has one point of access from Little 

Road and two points of access form Office Park Drive. 

  

Thoroughfare Existing Proposed 

Little Road 120-foot one-way 

lanes undivided 

major arterial 

120-foot one-way 

lanes undivided 

major arterial 

Office Park Drive 50-foot ROW 

2 lanes undivided 

local street 

50-foot ROW 

2 lanes undivided 

local street 

 

Traffic Impact: The proposed zoning change will increase the average daily 

trips by 396, with an addition of 30 trips during the a.m. peak 

hour and 37 trips during the p.m. peak hour.  The additional 

trips will not significantly impact the adjacent roadway systems. 

 

Water & Sewer:  The site is currently served with water and sewer. 

 

Drainage: The site is located in the Rush Creek drainage basin. The site 

has no portion within the FEMA floodplain.  No significant 

drainage impacts are expected to result from development of 

this site as long as all relevant city ordinances are complied 

with. 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 7, located at 4000 Little Road, provides 

protection to this site.  The estimated fire response time is less 

than five minutes, which is in keeping with recommended 

standards. 

 

School District: Arlington Independent School District 

 



Case Information  
   

 

Zoning Case: PD16-13  i-2 

Prepared:   9-16-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

 The proposed request is located in the Arlington Independent 

School District and has no impact on the schools serving this 

site.   

Notices Sent: 

  Neighborhood  

  Associations: ACTION North Arlington 

Arlington Independent School District 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Assn 

Forest Hills Home Owner’s Association 

Fort Worth Independent School District 

HEB Independent School District 

Kennedale Independent School District 

Mansfield Independent School District 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

West Citizen Action Network (WeCan) 

Shorewood Estates 

Hidden Oaks Addition 

Overland Stage Neighborhood Association  

Willow Bend/Thousand Oaks Additions 

Southwest Arlington Property Owners (SWAPO) 

  Property Owners: 13 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 



 

Itemized Allowable Uses 
   

Zoning Case:  PD16-13   ii-1 

Prepared:   9-16-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

 

Allowable Uses: Planned Development (PD) for General Commercial (GC) 

uses limited to Auto service center 

 

Permitted – Auto service center 



SUP96-28

SUP02-1

CC

CC

CC

CC

CC

PD
Z82-77/P-98

OFFICE PARK DR
LIT

TL
E R

D

04391

04380

04350

04320

04319

04330

04401

04388

04340

04311

05801

04360

04402

04370

05901

04351

05809

/

LOCATION MAP
PD16-13

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 12-14-2015

PD FOR GC USES LIMITED TO AN
AUTO SERVICE CENTER WITH
DEVELOPMENT PLAN

KC

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 8040

Feet



  iv-1 
 

PD16-13 

North of West Interstate Highway 20 and west of West Green Oaks Boulevard  

  

View of subject site.  View north. View of adjacent commercial use located east of 

the subject site.  View east. 

  

View of adjacent commercial use located south 

of the subject site.  View south. 

View of adjacent commercial use located west of 

the subject site.  View west. 

  

 









 

Staff Report 
 

Zoning Case PD16-14 (Take 5 oil change – 4500 Matlock) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  9-21-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Following the public hearing, consider Zoning Case PD16-14, with a Development Plan. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
None 
 
ANALYSIS  
Request  
The applicant requests to change the zoning on approximately .819 acres addressed at 4500 
Matlock Road, and generally located south of East Stephens Street and west of Matlock 
Road. 
 
Current zoning:  Planned Development (PD) for a Convenience Store with Gasoline 

Sales and Car Wash 
Requested zoning:  Planned Development (PD) for General Commercial (GC) uses limited 

to an Auto Service Center, with a Development Plan 
 
Existing Site Conditions 
The subject site was developed with a gas station and convenience store.  The fuel tanks 
have been removed from site, and the structure is currently unoccupied.  The site is 
currently zoned Planned Development (PD) for a Convenience Store with Gasoline Sales and 
Car Wash.  This application is to rezone the entire site to Planned Development for General 
Commercial (GC) to allow an auto service center use, which was not identified as an allowed 
use in the previous PD. 
 
Development Plan 
The development plan proposes the demolition of the existing structure and redevelopment 
of the entire site. The proposal includes a 1,636.99-square-foot, three-bay service area 
specifically designed for minor repair of motor vehicles within enclosed service bays or 
stalls.  These services may include but are not limited to services such as retail sale and 
dispensing of lubricating oils, tires, filters, and other limited repair and maintenance work.  
 
The structure shall consist of two main exterior materials, brick veneer and EIFS.  A tower 
element has been added to the corner of the structure incorporating a standing seam metal 
roof with a 12:10 slope. 
 
The building is designed such that the customer is required to remain in the vehicle while 
their vehicle is being serviced and, therefore there is no waiting area incorporated into the 
design.  The corporate concept is focused on convenience for the customer. 
 
Landscaping and Screening 
The applicant is proposing a landscape plan that complies with the requirements of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC).  Per the UDC, section 3.2.3.B.1 Auto Service Center, 
service bays shall not face a public street.  With this PD, the applicant is proposing a 
deviation to this standard.  The applicant is proposing the installation of a six-foot tall 
masonry wall along the Little Road street frontage in order to screen the bay doors from the 
public right-of way.     



Page 2 of 3 

 

   
 
The following is a comparison of the current UDC standards to the applicant’s proposed 
landscape: 
 

 
The proposed eight-foot tall dumpster enclosure will be wrapped with brick veneer to 
provide compatibility with the primary structure.  The applicant is also providing the 
required four-foot tall evergreen living screen.   
 
Parking 
Based on the proposed use, two parking spaces are required (2 per 1000 gfa).  The 
applicant is providing eight parking spaces. Each over-parked space requires three 
additional trees per the UDC.  The applicant has complied with this requirement by installing 
three additional 4-inch caliper trees.  Along with required vehicle parking, one bicycle rack is 
required.   
 
Adjacent Land Uses 
The properties to the north and east are developed as office uses and zoned General 
Commercial (GC).  The property to the south, of the subject site is zoned Community 
Commercial (CC) and is developed as a strip shopping center with general commercial uses. 
The property to the west is developed with a warehouse use and is zoned Industrial 
Manufacturing (IM).  
 
Comprehensive Plan Analysis 
The proposed zoning change from PD for gasoline sales, convenience store, and car wash to 
PD for auto service center represents a minor change that is still in keeping with the 
community convenience commercial uses that are envisioned as one of the uses for Regional 
Activity Centers (RAC) in the Comprehensive Plan. The goals for RAC’s include developing 
special places that facilitate regional opportunities. Additionally, the site’s proximity to I-20 
suggests auto service uses may be convenient for local and regional users of the area. 
Considering the goals for this area and the site’s location, the proposed zoning change to PD 
for auto service center is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and other relevant 
plans. 
 

 Required per UDC Proposed 

Landscape Setback 

Setback Width 15 feet (Matlock) 
10 feet (E. Stephens Street) 

Complied 

Trees in Setback Nine 3” caliper trees  Nine 4” caliper trees 

Plants in Setback  95 plants 17 ornamental grasses 
58 shrubs 

17 seasonal color plants 

Parking Lot Islands 

Trees in Islands One 3” caliper tree per island Four 4” caliper tree per island 

Additional Landscaping 

Additional landscaping has been installed around the structure and in the island adjacent 
to the stacking area and around all the internal parking areas.  The applicant is including 
a combination of decomposed granite, shrubs, ornamental grasses, and seasonal color to 
accent the project. 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Attached: i. Case Information 
 ii. Itemized Allowable Uses 
 iii. Location Map 
 iv. Photos  
 v.  Development Plan (3 pages) 
Under separate cover: None 
Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE October 11, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Kevin Charles 
Development Planning Manager Senior Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6515 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov 
 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
   

Zoning Case: PD16-14  i-1 

Prepared:   9-16-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

Applicant: Richmond Group, represented by James M. Corkill, FAHA/AIA 

 

Property Owner:  DFW Trio Investment, LLP represented by Ihsan Housini 

 

Sector Plan:  West 

 

Council District:  4 

 
Allowable Uses: Auto service center 
 

Development History: The subject site is currently platted and is commonly known as 

Lot 6 of the J L Newton Addition.   

 

 No previous zoning cases have occurred in the general vicinity 

within the past five years. 

 

Transportation: The proposed development has two points of access from 

Matlock Road and East Stephens Street. 

  

Thoroughfare Existing Proposed 

Matlock Road 120-foot, 6-lane 

divided arterial 

120-foot, 6-lane 

divided arterial 

East Stephens 

Street 

60-foot, 2-lane 

undivided 

60-foot, 2-lane 

undivided 

 

Traffic Impact: The subject zoning case will have no significant impact on 

traffic trips. 

 

Water & Sewer:  The site is currently served with water and sewer. 

 

Drainage: The site is located in the South Fish Creek drainage basin. The 

site has no portion within the FEMA floodplain.  No significant 

drainage impacts are expected to result from development of 

this site as long as all relevant city ordinances are complied 

with. 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 9, located at 909 Wimbledon Drive, 

provides protection to this site.  The estimated fire response 

time is less than five minutes, which is in keeping with 

recommended standards. 

 

School District: Arlington Independent School District 

 

 The proposed request is located in the Arlington Independent 

School District and has no impact on the schools serving this 

site.   

Notices Sent: 

  Neighborhood  

  Associations: ACTION North Arlington 



Case Information  
   

 

Zoning Case: PD16-14  i-2 

Prepared:   9-16-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

Arlington Independent School District 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Assn 

Forest Hills Home Owner’s Association  

Fort Worth Independent School District 

HEB Independent School District 

Kennedale Independent School District 

Mansfield Independent School District  

Northern Arlington Ambience  

West Citizen Action Network (WeCan) 

Harold Patterson Community Assn 

North Cravens Community Group 

Villages of Fairfield Neighborhood Association  

Villages of Fairfield Neighborhood Association  

Southwest Arlington Property Owners (SWAPO) 

  Property Owners:  8 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 



 

Itemized Allowable Uses 
   

Zoning Case:  PD16-14   ii-1 

Prepared:   9-16-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

 

Allowable Uses: Planned Development (PD) for General Commercial (GC) 

uses limited to Auto service center 

 

Permitted – Auto service center 



SUP91-3

SUP09-27

SUP00-2

SUP04-8

PD

IM

CCGC

IM IM
IM

CC
CC

IM

CC

CC

IMGC
LI

PD
GC

CC
PD

P92-03

P89-38

Z06-12/B06-12

PD15-13

W STEPHENS ST E STEPHENS ST

LA
RR

Y 
LN

BA
RN

ET
T B

LV

MA
TL

OC
K

RD

04635

04515

04601

04508

04500

04520

04405

04312
04301

04306

04300

04209

04304

04404

00717

04401

04309

00802

04408

04400

04501

00100 00120

00131

00175

04650

04600

04411

00801

04420

00150

00102

00808

04412

04645

00800

/

LOCATION MAP
PD16-14

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 8-23-2016

PD FOR GC USES LIMITED TO AN
AUTO SERVICE CENTER WITH 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN

KC

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 210105

Feet



  iv-1 
 

PD16-14 

South of East Stephens Street and west of Matlock Road  

  

View of adjacent uses.  View north. View of adjacent commercial use located east of 

the subject site.  View east. 

  

View of adjacent commercial uses located south 

of the subject site.  View south. 

View of the subject site.  View southwest. 

  

 









 

Staff Report 
 

Alternate Sign Plan ASP16-2 (Hurricane Harbor) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  9-21-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Following the public hearing, consider Alternate Sign Plan ASP16-2. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
None 
 
REQUEST 
The applicant is requesting approval of an Alternate Sign Plan (ASP) for approximately 46 
acres of land, commonly known as Brookhollow/ Arlington Addition, Block 11, Lot 1R1, and 
generally located at 1800 E. Lamar Boulevard.  The site is zoned Entertainment District 
Overlay- Community Commercial (EDO-CC). 
 

Conditions Hurricane Harbor ASP16-2 
1. An alternate sign plan applies only to 

property that has 500 feet or more of 
continuous frontage on a freeway or 
arterial street. 

Site is approximately 46 acres and has over 
2000 linear feet of continuous frontage on 
West Interstate Highway 30, a controlled 
access freeway. 

 
ANALYSIS 
The subject site is located north of West Interstate 30 Highway and west of Ballpark Way.  
The site is currently developed as Hurricane Harbor amusement park, a large site, which is 
bordered by almost the entire 1800 block of East Lamar Boulevard on the north, Wet-N-Wild 
Way to the south, and Baird Farm Road on the west.  The property to the east of the subject 
site is developed as the Bank of America office building. The site houses a wide variety of 
outdoor entertainment uses. 
 
The current signage for the overall development has remained in its original configuration 
since its establishment in 1982.  The new sign will be located approximately 1500-feet east 
of the current sign position.  The general sign standards do not allow pole signs in the EDO 
as well as Electronic Message Centers (EMC) on pole signs. 
 
The proposed Alternate Sign Package (see attached) outlines the intent, size, general 
location, and type of illumination for the sign that is proposed to be installed.   
 

Sign Location 
UDC Standards Existing 

Signage 
Proposed Signage 

Wet-N-Wild Way 
(replace existing) 

20-foot tall/ 
100-square-foot ground 

sign 

One,  55-foot 
tall/ 1200-
square-foot 
ground sign 

Existing sign to be 
removed and replaced by 

one, 50-foot tall/ 672-
square-foot electronic 
message center sign 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

The proposed electronic message center (EMC) shall be required to meet the following 
standards identified by the UDC Section 7.6.9; 
 

 EMC must include an auto-dimming feature.  
 EMCs are only allowed on freeways and arterials and not allowed in DB zoning 

district. 
 A maximum of one EMC shall be permitted per lot.  
 EMC signs shall obtain an annual inspection and pay the appropriate fee as shown on 

the fee schedule.  
 Changeable Messages are allowed as follows: 

  
1. Message must change simultaneously on the entire sign face.  
2. Messages on an EMC must continuously display the message for at least 12 
seconds.  
3. Scrolling, video, or animated messages are prohibited.  
4. Letter height shall be based on sight distance of one inch of height per 36 feet of 
sight distance, providing a minimum 10-inch letter height on an arterial street and 
minimum 18-inch letter height on a controlled access freeway. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Attached: i. Case Information 
 ii. Location Map 
 iii. Photos 
 iv. Alternate Sign Plan (5 pages) 
Under separate cover: None 
Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE October 11, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Kevin Charles 
Development Planning Manager Senior Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6515 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov 

 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
   

Zoning Case: ASP16-2  i-1 

Prepared:   9-7-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

Applicant: Phillips Signs represented by Jon Brdecka 

 

Property Owner:  Six Flags Fund II, LTD represented by J. Brother 

 

Sector Plan:  North 

 

Council District:  1 

 
Allowable Uses: All uses as itemized in attachment ii. 
 

Development History: The subject site is currently platted as Site 1R1, Block 11, of 

the Brookhollow Addition.  

 

 Previous zoning cases in the general vicinity in the past five 

years include: 

 

Case No. Location Request Disposition 

SUP14-6 2140 East 

Lamar Blv. 

Boutique 

Hotel 

Approved 

SUP15-2 1630 East 

Lamar Blv. 

Restaurant 

with drive-

thru 

Denied 

 

Transportation: The proposed development has seven points of access.  Four 

points of access are from Wet-N-Wild Way, two from East 

Lamar Boulevard, and one from Baird Farm Road. 

 

Thoroughfare Existing Proposed 

East Lamar 

Boulevard 

130-foot, 6-lane 

divided arterial  

130-foot, 6-lane 

divided arterial 

Biard Farm Road  80-foot, 4-lane 

divided  

collector 

120-foot, 4-lane 

divided  

collector 

Wet-N-Wild Way 80-foot, 4-lane 

divided  

collector 

80-foot, 4-lane 

divided  

collector 

 

Traffic Impact: The subject zoning case will have no significant impact on 

traffic trips. 

 

Water & Sewer:  Water and sanitary sewer services are available to the subject 

site. 

 

Drainage: The site is located in the Johnson Creek drainage basin.  The 

site has no portion within the FEMA floodplain.  No significant 

drainage impacts are expected to result from development of 

this site as long as all relevant city ordinances are complied 

with. 



Case Information  
   

 

Zoning Case: ASP16-2  i-2 

Prepared:   9-7-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 8, located at 2020 Madison Drive, provides 

protection to this site.  The estimated fire response time is less 

than five minutes, which is in keeping with recommended 

standards. 

 

School District: AISD Independent School District. 

 

 The proposed zoning request is located in the Arlington 

Independent School District and has no impact on the schools 

serving this site.   

  

Notices Sent: 

  Neighborhood  

  Associations: ACTION North Arlington 

AISD 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Assn 

Forest Hills HOA 

FWISD 

HEBISD 

KISD 

MISD 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

WeCan (West Citizen Action Network) 

Hunter Place North HOA 

Friends of Parkway Central Park 

Holt Road Community Watch/Neighborhood Association 

Hunter Place North HOA 

Oak Canyon HOA 

Riverbend Neighborhood 

Wood Ridge Neighborhood Assn 

The Cloisters Condominiums 

  Property Owners: 13 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 



ARL BROOKHOLLOW 11 1R1 

SUP93-12

RS-7.2

EDO-CC

EDO-CC

EDO-CC

RS-7.2

EDO-CC

EDO-CC
LI

RS-7.2

EDO-CC

OC

RS-7.2CC

PD
PD

Z06-40/B06-40R1

BA
IR

D
FA

RM
RD E LAMAR BLV

COPELAND/E I30 EB RMP

E INTERSTATE 30 FWY
WET N WILD WAY

E COPELAND RD

BROOKHOLLOW PLAZA DR

CORVALLIS TRL
AT

&T
 W

AY

E I30 WB 29 EXIT RMP

01801

01902
01904

01915

01906

01905

01914
01912

01916

01717

01712

01719

0172001716

01711

01900 01950 02021

01718

01911

01710

01908

01975

01603

02005

01625
01623

01804

01803

01604

01605

01600

01601

02001

01705

01607

01602 01706

01910
01903

01805

01907

01999
01701

01551

01800

01650

01666

01709

01500

01550

01656

01715

01901

01708
01704

01606

01909

0200001660

/

LOCATION MAP
ASP16-2  @ 1800 E Lamar Blvd

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 9-15-2016

HURRICANE HARBOR 
ALTERNATE SIGN PLAN
 46.748 ACRES

LVD

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 310155

Feet

charlesk
Callout
Existing Sign Location

charlesk
Callout
Proposed Sign Location 



  iv-1 
 

ASP16-2 

North of East Interstate 30 Highway and west of Ballpark Way  
 

  

View of subject site frontage along East Lamar 

Blvd. View east. 

View of adjacent properties to the east. 

  

View of adjacent multi-family property across 

Baird Farm Road.  View west. 

View of notification sign along Wet N Wild Way.  

View west. 

  

 













 

Staff Report 
 

Alternate Sign Plan ASP16-3 (Six Flags) 
Planning and Zoning Meeting Date:  9-21-16 Document Being Considered:  Ordinance 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Following the public hearing, consider Alternate Sign Plan ASP16-3. 
 
PRIOR BOARD OR COUNCIL ACTION 
None 
 
REQUEST 
The applicant is requesting approval of an Alternate Sign Plan (ASP) for approximately 
189.877 acres of land, commonly known as Great Southwest Industrial Community Number 
4, Block 1, Lot 2RAR1, and generally located at 2201 E. Road to Six Flags.  The site is zoned 
Entertainment District Overlay- Community Commercial (EDO-CC). 
 

Conditions Six Flags ASP16-3 
1. An alternate sign plan applies only to 

property that has 500 feet or more of 
continuous frontage on a freeway or 
arterial street. 

Site is approximately 189.877 acres and has 
over 3000 linear feet of continuous frontage 
on East Interstate Highway 30, a controlled 
access freeway. 

 
ANALYSIS 
The subject site is located south of East Interstate 30 Highway and east of Ballpark Way.  
The site is currently developed as Six Flags amusement park, is a major destination in the 
Entertainment District Overlay.  The property encompasses all of the area located between 
East Copeland Road, Ballpark Way, Six Flags Drive, and East Road to Six Flags Street.   
 
The current signage for the overall development has remained in its original configuration 
since it’s was erected in the 1990’s.  With the proposed ASP, this sign will be removed and a 
new sign will be located approximately 2000-feet west of the current sign position.  The 
general sign standards do not allow pole signs in the EDO as well as Electronic Message 
Centers (EMC) on pole signs. 
 
The proposed Alternate Sign Package (see attached) outlines the intent, size, general 
location, and type of illumination for the sign that is proposed to be installed.   
 

Sign Location 
UDC Standards Existing 

Signage 
Proposed Signage 

East Copeland 
Road (replace 

existing) 

20-foot tall/  
100-square-foot ground 

sign 

One, 50–foot 
tall/ 1040- 
square-foot 
ground sign 

Existing sign to be 
removed and replaced by 

one, 50-foot tall/ 672-
square-foot electronic 
message center sign 

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

The proposed electronic message center (EMC) shall be required to meet the following 
standards identified by the UDC Section 7.6.9; 
 

 EMC must include an auto-dimming feature.  
 EMCs are only allowed on freeways and arterials and not allowed in DB zoning 

district. 
 A maximum of one EMC shall be permitted per lot.  
 EMC signs shall obtain an annual inspection and pay the appropriate fee as shown on 

the fee schedule.  
 Changeable Messages are allowed as follows:  

 
1. Message must change simultaneously on the entire sign face.  
2. Messages on an EMC must continuously display the message for at least 12 
seconds.  
3. Scrolling, video, or animated messages are prohibited.  
4. Letter height shall be based on sight distance of one inch of height per 36 feet of 
sight distance, providing a minimum 10-inch letter height on an arterial street and 
minimum 18-inch letter height on a controlled access freeway. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Attached: i. Case Information 
 ii. Location Map 
 iii. Photos 
 iv. Alternate Sign Plan (5 pages) 
Under separate cover: None 
Available in the City Secretary’s office: None 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE October 11, 2016 
 
STAFF CONTACTS 
Jennifer Pruitt, AICP, LEED AP Kevin Charles 
Development Planning Manager Senior Planner 
Community Development and Planning Community Development and Planning 
817-459-6138 817-459-6515 
Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov 

 

mailto:Jennifer.Pruitt@arlingtontx.gov
mailto:Kevin.Charles@arlingtontx.gov


Case Information  
  

Zoning Case: ASP16-3  i-1 

Prepared:   9-6-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

Applicant: Phillips Signs represented by Jon Brdecka 

 

Property Owner:  Six Flags Fund II, LTD represented by J. Brother 

 

Sector Plan:  North 

 

Council District:  1 

 
Allowable Uses: All uses as itemized in attachment ii. 
 

Development History: The subject site is currently platted as Great Southwest 

Industrial Community Number 4, Block 1, Lot 2RAR1.  

 

 Previous zoning cases in the general vicinity in the past five 

years include: 

 

Case No. Location Request Disposition 

SUP14-6 2140 East 

Lamar Blv. 

Boutique 

Hotel 

Approved 

SUP15-2 1630 East 

Lamar Blv. 

Restaurant 

with drive-

thru 

Denied 

 

Transportation: The proposed development has seven points of access.  Two 

points of access is from East Copeland Road, one from Six Flags 

Drive, and one four from East Road to Six Flags Baird Farm 

Road. 

 

Thoroughfare Existing Proposed 

East Road to Six 

Flags 

80-foot, 4-lane 

undivided 

Major Collector  

120-foot, 6-lane 

divided 

Major Arterial 

Ballpark Way 120-foot, 6-lane 

divided  

arterial 

120-foot, 6-lane 

divided  

arterial 

Six Flags Drive 100-foot, 4-lane 

divided  

collector 

100-foot, 4-lane 

divided  

collector 

 East Copeland 

Road 

Varied 3-lane road varied 

 

Traffic Impact: The subject zoning case will have no significant impact on 

traffic trips. 

 

Water & Sewer:  Water and sanitary sewer services are available to the subject 

site. 

 



Case Information  
   

 

Zoning Case: ASP16-3  i-2 

Prepared:   9-6-16     KEVIN CHARLES 

Drainage: The site is located in the Johnson Creek drainage basin.  The 

site has no portion within the FEMA floodplain.  No significant 

drainage impacts are expected to result from development of 

this site as long as all relevant city ordinances are complied 

with. 

 

Fire: Fire Station Number 11, located at 2204 Ballpark Way, provides 

protection to this site.  The estimated fire response time is less 

than five minutes, which is in keeping with recommended 

standards. 

 

School District: AISD Independent School District. 

 

 The proposed zoning request is located in the Arlington 

Independent School District and has no impact on the schools 

serving this site.   

  

Notices Sent: 

  Neighborhood  

  Associations: ACTION North Arlington 

AISD 

Arlington Alliance for Responsible Government 

Arlington Neighborhoods 

East Arlington Review 

Far South Arlington Neighborhood Assn 

Forest Hills HOA 

FWISD 

HEBISD 

KISD 

MISD 

Northern Arlington Ambience  

WeCan (West Citizen Action Network) 

Parkview Addition Community 

The Cloisters Condominiums 

  Property Owners: 20 

  Letters of Support: 0 

  Letter of Opposition: 0 

 



GSID COMM 4 2RAR

SUP95-22

SUP01-6

SUP03-2

SUP06-
2

SUP05-4

SUP14-6

EDO-CC

EDO-CC
EDO-CC EDO-CC

EDO-IM
EDO-IM

EDO-IM
EDO-IMPD

EDO-CC

EDO-IM
EDO-IM

EDO-IM

EDO-IM

EDO-CC

EDO-IM
PD

PD
EDO-CC

PD

E LAMAR BLV

E INTERSTATE 30 FWY

BA
LL

PA
RK

WA
Y

E COPELAND RD

WET N WILD WAY

E RANDOL MILL RD

E ROAD TO SIX FLAGS ST

MA
GI

C M
ILE

ST

BALLPARK/E I30
EB RMP

SIX
FL

AG
S

DR

E I30 WB 29 EXIT RMP
0227202019

01801

02401

00800

00812

00920

00839

01903

02218 02224

00700 00701

02108
02112

01940

00721

01981
01939

00916

00750

00912

00900

01199

01901

02525

02420

02460

02221 02301

01975

00831

02005

01024

00825

02023

02011

02201

02009

00624 00633

02001
02115

02211

01999

00600

00616

02366

01101

02400

02100 02240

02160 02190

02380

00610
00615

02140

02451

00621

01800

01900 02225

02150

02101

00711

02223

02212

02000

01500

01550

02121

02200

02300
02500

02170

0080101201

02501

02390

00731

/

LOCATION MAP
ASP16-3 @ 2201 E. Road to Six Flags

_̂

iii-1Prepared: 9-9-2016

SIX FLAGS ALTERNATE SIGN PLAN
190.000 ACRES

LVD

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an

on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. 
0 590295

Feet

charlesk
Callout
Approximate location of proposed sign

charlesk
Callout
Existing sign location



  iv-1 
 

ASP16-3 

South of East Interstate 30 Highway and east of Ballpark Way  
 

  

View of subject site frontage along East Road to 

Six Flags. View west. 

View of adjacent properties to the east. 

  

View of subject property along Copeland Road.  

View southeast. 

View of notification sign along Six Flags Blvd.  

View south. 

  

 












	Case Location Map
	Work Session Agenda
	Regular Session Agenda
	Bus Tour Agenda

	Regular Session Agenda Items
	Edgefield SR with attach for 9-21-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Location Map
	11 x 17 Plat

	Park 20/360 Addition SR with attach for 9-21-16 P&Z
	Staff Report
	Location Map
	11 x 17 Plat

	ZA16-8 Ballweg Residential SR with attach for 9-21-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Itemized Allowable Uses
	Location Map
	Photos

	PD16-12 Take 5 SR with attach for 9-21-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Itemized Allowable Uses
	Location Map
	Photos
	Development Plan

	PD16-13 Take 5 SR with attach for 9-21-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Itemized Allowable Uses
	Location Map
	Photos
	Development Plan

	PD16-14 Take 5 SR with attach for 9-21-16 P&Z.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Itemized Allowable Uses
	Location Map
	Photos
	Development Plan

	ASP16-2 SR with attach for 9-21-16 P&Z_.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Location Map
	Photos
	Alternate Sign Plan

	ASP16-3 SR with attach for 9-21-16 P&Z2.pdf
	Staff Report
	Case Information
	Location Map
	Photos
	Alternate Sign Plan





